
 

 

 
 

 
 
Cabinet Agenda 
 

 
Wyre Borough Council 

Date of Publication: 30 May 2023 
Please ask for: Marianne Unwin 

Democratic Services and Scrutiny 
Manager (Temporary) 

Tel: 01253 887326 
 
Cabinet meeting on Wednesday, 7 June 2023 at 6.00 pm in the Council 
Chamber, Civic Centre, Poulton-Le-Fylde 
  

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 
 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

 

 Members will disclose any pecuniary and any other significant interests 
they may have in relation to the matters to be considered at this 
meeting. 
 

 

 
3.   Confirmation of minutes 

 
(Pages 3 - 6) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting of 
Cabinet. 
 

 

 
4.   Public questions 

 
 

 To receive and respond to any questions from members of the public.  
  

Public questions for Cabinet may be submitted at any time by writing to 
Democratic Services or via email democratic.services@wyre.gov.uk. 
Public questions for this meeting must be received by noon on the 
Thursday before the meeting is held and do not need to specifically 
relate to items on this agenda. Questioners should provide their name 
and address and indicate to which Cabinet member the question is to 
be directed. 

  
The total period of time allocated for public questions will not normally 
exceed 30 minutes. 
  
 

 

 
5.   Upgrade to CCTV network 

 
(Pages 7 - 20) 

 Report of the Neighbourhood Services and Community Safety Portfolio 
Holder and the Corporate Director Environment. 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:publicquestions@wyre.gov.uk


 

 

6.   Variation to the Wyre Hackney Carriage Tariff 
 

(Pages 21 - 68) 

 Report of the Neighbourhood Services and Community Safety Portfolio 
Holder and the Corporate Director Environment. 
 

 

 



 
 

Cabinet Minutes  
 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting of Wyre Borough Council held on Wednesday, 22 
March 2023 at the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Poulton-Le-Fylde. 
 
 
Cabinet members present: 
Councillor Michael Vincent, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Lynne Bowen, Leisure, Health and Community Engagement Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Simon Bridge JP, Street Scene, Parks and Open Spaces Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Alice Collinson, Planning Policy and Economic Development Portfolio Holder 
Councillor David Henderson, Resources Portfolio Holder 
 
Apologies for absence: 
Councillor Roger Berry, Deputy Leader and Neighbourhood Services and Community 
Safety Portfolio Holder 
 
Officers present: 
Garry Payne, Chief Executive 
Mark Billington, Corporate Director Environment 
Marianne Hesketh, Corporate Director Communities 
Clare James, Corporate Director Resources and Section 151 Officer 
Marianne Unwin, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager (Temporary) 
Alan Fitzpatrick, Waste, Recycling and Environmental Enforcement Manager 
 
No members of the public or press attended the meeting. 
 
  
CAB.36 Declarations of interest  

 
None. 
  

CAB.37 Confirmation of minutes  
 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting of 15 February 2023 were approved as 
correct record. 
  

CAB.38 Public questions  
 
None received.  
 
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

CAB.39 Insurance Contract Renewal  
 
The Resources Portfolio Holder and Corporate Director Resources submitted 
a report to inform the Cabinet of the need to conduct a tender exercise and 
renew the insurance cover required by the council. 
  
The Resources Portfolio Holder, Councillor Henderson introduced the report. 
  
Decisions 
  
Cabinet agreed: 
  

         To approve the re-tender of the council’s insurance arrangements with 
support from the council’s insurance brokers, AJ Gallagher, in order to 
have the new insurance policies in place from 30 June 2023. 

  
         That approval is given to use YPO under their Dynamic Purchasing 

System framework number 978 (Insurance Placement) to run a 
competition to market our risk to the insurance market. 

  
         That approval is given to authorise the Corporate Director Resources 

to select the most appropriate insurance provider(s) on the basis of the 
most economically advantageous tender bid(s). 

  
CAB.40 Environmental Enforcement Service - New Provider  

 
The Street Scene, Parks and Open Spaces Portfolio Holder and Corporate 
Director Environment submitted a report to seek the approval from Members 
to enter into an agreement with a new provider to deliver specialist 
enforcement services to address environmental crimes such as dog fouling, 
littering and other dog control measures under the Public Space Protection 
Orders. 
  
The Street Scene, Parks and Open Spaces Portfolio Holder, Councillor Bridge 
introduced the report.  
  
Decisions 
  
Cabinet agreed: 
  

         That Members approve the two year environmental enforcement 
agreement (with a 12-month extension option), with Waste 
Investigations Support & Enforcement Ltd (‘WISE’), on a nil cost basis, 
with no financial risk to the council.  

  
         Members agree to retain the fine for littering fixed penalty notices 

(FPN) at £100 and continue with the current early payment reduction of 
£80 for littering fixed penalty notices if paid with 10 days (FPNs remain 
at £100 for PSPOs without any reduction for early payment).  

  
         That delegated authority will be given for fully trained WISE officers to 

Page 4



 

issue FPNs on behalf of the council for the duration of the agreement. 
  

         That Members agree to the arrangement as a concessions contract on 
the basis that “the goods, works, or services are of a specialised nature 
carried out by only one or a limited number of firms with no reasonably 
satisfactory alternatives available”, which ensures the agreement 
remains in-line with existing Procurement Regulations and Council 
procedures. The agreement would remain in place for 24 months (from 
3 April 2023), with the option for a further 12 month extension.  

  
         That Members delegate the final details of the agreement to the 

Corporate Director Environment in consultation with the Legal Services 
Manager. 

  
CAB.41 Treasury Management Policy Statement and Practices, Treasury 

Management and Annual Investment Strategy, Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Capital Strategy 2023/24  
 
The Resources Portfolio Holder and the Corporate Director Resources 
submitted a report that set out the policies and objectives of the council in 
respect of Treasury Management activities, to explain how the council seeks 
to achieve the objectives and manage and control the activities for 2023/24 
which includes the Capital Strategy.  
  
The Resources Portfolio Holder, Councillor David Henderson introduced the 
report. He expressed the importance of councillors’ attendance at Treasury 
Management training sessions. 
  
In response to a question from the Leader of the Council, Michael Vincent 
regarding the recent collapse of Credit Suisse, the Corporate Director 
Resources, Clare James reassured the Cabinet that the council was not 
affected by this incident.  
  
Decisions 
  
Cabinet agreed: 
  

         To recommend to Council that the Treasury Management Policy 
Statement 2023/24 be approved and formally adopted. (Appendix 1). 

  
         To approve the revised Treasury Management Practices 2023/24 

(Appendix 2). 
  

         To recommend to Council that the Treasury Management and Annual 
Investment Strategy 2023/24 (Appendix 3) be approved.  

  
         To recommend to Council that the MRP Policy Statement 2023/24 

(Appendix 4) be approved and formally adopted.  
  

         To recommend to Council that the Capital Strategy 2023/24 (Appendix 
5) be approved.  

Page 5



 

 
The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 5.02 pm. 
 
Date of Publication: 23 March 2023. 
 
Options considered but rejected 
Any alternative options that were considered but rejected, in addition to the reasons for 
the recommendations that were made, are included in the full reports. 
 
When will these decisions be implemented? 
All decisions will be put into effect five working days from the date of publication, unless a 
decision is “called-in” by any four members of the council within that period. 
 
 

Page 6



 
 

Report of: Meeting Date 
Mark Billington, Corporate 
Director Environment and 

Cllr Roger Berry, 
Neighbourhood Services and  
Community Safety Portfolio 

Holder 

Cabinet 7 June 2023 

 
Upgrade of the Council’s Town Centre CCTV Network 

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
 

To seek Cabinet agreement to upgrade the council’s existing town centre 
CCTV network from analogue to digital IP technology, relocate the CCTV 
control room, make other related improvements to the service and add 
the scheme to the council’s 2023/24 and 2024/25 Capital Programme.   
 

2. Outcomes 
 

 2.1 
 
 

Replacement of the existing analogue CCTV equipment with digital IP 
technology will prevent loss of the council’s CCTV provision as a result of 
system failure and provide a more resilient network capable of expansion 
in future. Other related improvements, including to the CCTV control 
room, will further enhance the current and future delivery of the service. 
  

3. Recommendations 
 

 3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
3.3 

That approval is given to procure an upgrade of the existing CCTV 
equipment, control room and supporting transmission networks as 
outlined in section 5 and to give delegated authority to the Corporate 
Director Environment in conjunction with the Corporate Director 
Resources (and S.151 officer) to agree the final contractor arrangements.  
 
That approval is given to add the scheme, costing an estimated 
£338,000, to the council’s Capital Programme for 2023/24 and 2024/25, 
funded by a combination of UK Shared Prosperity funding, partner 
contribution/s and income from capital receipts. 
 
That approval is given to waive financial regulations under the 
exemptions to contract procedures at 4.06/07 of the Council’s 
Constitution “If a framework agreement is available that necessitates the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Council not having to go out to tender and the goods, works and services 
will still provide the Council with best value for money”. Crown 
Commercial Services Framework RM3808 (Security and Surveillance 
Services) is one framework agreement currently being explored. 

  
4. Background 

 
 4.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 

In June 2011, the council implemented a centralised CCTV system 
(following Neighbourhood Services Portfolio Holder and Resources 
Portfolio Holder approval 23 June 2011) which involved the relocation of 
all Wyre town centre CCTV equipment (previously based in a number of 
police stations across the district), to a dedicated control room within the 
Civic Centre. The council’s town centre CCTV network has remained 
largely unchanged since then and comprises a total of 30 cameras, 
including 13 cameras within the town of Fleetwood; 6 cameras in 
Cleveleys; 7 in Poulton; and 4 in Garstang. The current configuration of 
cameras feed into a digital storage device within the Civic Centre control 
room to give 31 days of stored data. The system records 24 hours a day, 
7 days a week and is manned predominantly by volunteers at peak times, 
with just 1.5 full-time equivalent staff employed to support service 
delivery. 
 
The town centre CCTV system is primarily relied upon by Lancashire 
Police to help with the detection and prevention of crime as well as to 
protect and locate vulnerable and missing persons and to help manage 
large scale events within the town centres. Numerous teams within the 
council also make regular use of the system, not least the council’s 
Community Safety Team in monitoring and addressing anti-social 
behaviour; the Estates Team for investigating damage to the council’s 
assets and the Audit and Insurance staff for investigating insurance 
claims made against the council. The council’s CCTV network is also 
used to provide evidence to support third party insurance claims such as 
those linked to road traffic accidents. 
 
The council’s CCTV Unit also currently monitors the town centre cameras 
located within Lytham St. Annes, Lytham and Kirkham for Fylde Borough 
Council (FBC), with all cameras feeding into the Civic Centre control 
room. The monitoring agreement has been in place since January 2015 
(following approval by Cabinet 3 December 2014) and currently 
generates an income of £16,500 per annum which helps to support 
running costs. FBC also provide a contribution of £2,000 per annum 
towards operator training costs and other sundry expenses.  
 
The current annual cost of operating Wyre’s Town Centre CCTV is in the 
region of £16,390. Maintenance of the system is currently provided by 
Blackpool Council at an annual cost of £10,200, making up the majority of 
the total cost. The annual running costs also include electricity in the 
region of £5,500 per annum and radio wave charges of £690 per annum, 
but exclude volunteer expenses and any one-off equipment repair / 
replacement costs. Network charges for the transmission of the data from 

Page 8



each town are also excluded from the operating cost provided as the 
transmission pathways relied upon for the purposes of CCTV are also 
utilised by the wider council and the costs of transmission are therefore 
included in the general ICT Services budget. 
 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All existing cameras within the council’s CCTV network are analogue 
which means that the system is considered significantly outdated in 
comparison to recommended CCTV technology today, particularly in 
terms of the quality of the images it provides. The majority of cameras in 
operation today have been in place for over 10 years which means that 
the network has already significantly exceeded its marketed life 
expectancy. This is evidenced by the increasing number of faults now 
occurring on the system and the increasing amount of maintenance and 
repair now required to ensure the continued operation of individual 
cameras. The age of the system is also such that the equipment is fast 
becoming obsolete and is proving more and more difficult to replace and 
find parts for. The CCTV unit has at times had to move cameras around 
the network to ensure that priority areas have continued provision, as 
cameras can otherwise remain ‘down’ for some weeks, preventing the 
unit from assisting the police in monitoring activity in that area and from 
collecting crucial evidence in the event that an incident occurs. All this 
comes at an additional cost to the general maintenance of the system 
which does not include camera repairs or moves and it is only down to 
the goodwill and effectiveness of Blackpool Council CCTV who maintain 
the system that the repair costs incurred to date have been limited. 
Upgrading the system is therefore considered necessary in order to 
safeguard the continued operation of the council’s town centre CCTV 
provision. 
 
Replacement of the council’s ageing analogue technology with digital is 
also considered necessary to enhance the quality of the images obtained 
by the system. The limited resolution offered by the existing cameras 
means that images are often grainy and difficult to decipher particularly 
close up. The quality of the images is particularly poor during the hours of 
darkness when the majority of Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) and other 
crime takes place, meaning that it is often impossible to obtain images of 
sufficient quality to enable the identification of perpetrators (particularly to 
a court standard). This can be extremely frustrating for the unit, 
particularly when operators are confident as to the identity of the 
perpetrator owing to their familiarity and behaviour, but are unable to 
obtain sufficiently robust evidence to secure an arrest or conviction. As 
the unit largely relies on the goodwill of volunteers to operate, there is a 
risk that operators will leave the unit if they do not consider the equipment 
is adequate enough to make their efforts worthwhile. A move from 
analogue to digital cameras is therefore very much required and will be 
necessary if the unit seeks accreditation by the Information 
Commissioners Office (ICO) for which good quality images are a 
prerequisite. 

Page 9



 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
 

 
The likely remaining lifespan of the town centre CCTV system is hard to 
determine. However a recent survey of the system completed by the 
council’s network provider (TNP) has concluded that continued 
maintenance of the current analogue equipment is not a viable option for 
the council. The survey report provided by TNP makes clear that the cost 
of keeping the current analogue system operational will increase year on 
year, with network support costs alone likely to be in the region of 
£135,000 if the system manages to survive a further five years, which is 
considered highly unlikely. This figure relates purely to the changes which 
will need to be made to the way in which the network transmits its data 
and excludes the cost of any equipment / camera repairs or replacements 
in that time, which are predicted to be high, if even possible. TNP’s 
recommendation is therefore that the council should upgrade its CCTV 
equipment to digital IP technology at its earliest opportunity, before the 
system costs outweigh the benefits of operation and before the system 
fails indefinitely.  
 
The survey report provided by TNP also makes clear that upgrade of the 
existing CCTV equipment to digital IP cannot be achieved without a 
degree of enhancement to the transmission network which connects the 
individual cameras on the system to one another and feeds the CCTV 
footage back to the Civic Centre control room. For instance, digital IP 
technology requires more broadband to operate effectively than analogue 
technology and therefore the council must ensure that its transmission 
network has sufficient capacity to accommodate the proposed upgrade of 
equipment. This has already largely been achieved following work 
initiated in 2019. However, further network enhancements are now 
required and TNP have identified a number of radio links / fibre 
connections which will require attention / upgrade in order to overcome 
existing line of sight failings or isolated broadband limitations if a move to 
digital IP technology is to be successful. A summary of these works is 
provided within Appendix 1 – CCTV Upgrade Options Appraisal. 
 
TNP’s report also highlights opportunities for the council to go beyond the 
minimal works required to provide a functional IP system, which if 
secured will provide a more robust and future proofed CCTV network, 
enabling the installation of additional equipment / cameras in future. A 
total of four potential network solutions have been identified by TNP, all of 
which have varying degrees of benefit to the council. These all come at 
an individual cost, both in terms of initial installation and ongoing 
revenue. A summary of the solutions identified and subsequently 
considered is presented within Appendix 1. However the approach 
recommended is the silver solution, which is considered to provide a 
good balance in terms of future proofing the network and keeping both 
the installation and future operational costs to a minimum.   
 
Uptake of the silver solution will not only ensure that any necessary 
works to enable an upgrade to digital IP will be achieved, but will also 
ensure that advantage is taken of the fibre infrastructure already in place 

Page 10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

to provide greater resilience of the network in key areas. Whereas the 
current CCTV network is largely reliant on wireless transmission (radio 
links) to connect cameras (often in a chain formation) to an individual 
point (which then feeds back to the Civic Centre control room by a fibre 
connection), silver solution will increase the number of cameras which 
connect by fibre. This will only be where a suitable fibre connection is 
already available within the camera column, or in the case of Poulton, 
where provision of a new fibre connection will provide a second and more 
reliable means of transmission for the town’s cameras. The silver solution 
will also provide a means to overcome the relocation of the Tourist 
Information Centre in Garstang and the subsequent need to move the 
equipment which currently supports the transmission of CCTV footage in 
this area. Similarly, the silver solution will address the failing line of sight 
between camera 2 and St Chad’s church in Poulton. It will include both 
the reinstatement of the historic camera on the corner of Preston Street 
and Lord Street, Fleetwood and the installation of a new camera within 
Mount Gardens, Fleetwood, bringing the total number of cameras to 32. 
 
The silver option also includes provision to both relocate and upgrade the 
existing CCTV control room located within the Civic Centre. Owing to its 
size it is not able to accommodate any additional cameras into the 
council’s network and it is also considered to provide less than desirable 
working conditions for the unit’s operators. Relocation of the control room 
to a larger adjacent room has therefore been costed within the silver 
solution to complement the proposal to provide additional capacity on the 
network and allow for the possibility of future increased income 
generation. Relocation and expansion of the control room comes at an 
additional cost to the project. However, given the need to replace all the 
existing recording and monitoring equipment within the control room to 
enable an upgrade to digital IP technology, now would seem the optimum 
time to undertake an expansion of the unit so as to minimise the costs 
and disruption of doing so in future.   
 
Further detail on silver solution together with its comparison to the other 
network solutions available is provided in Appendix 1. Estimated costings 
(both capital and revenue) for the silver solution are provided below: 
 
Works   Estimated  

        Costings 
 

To relocate and upgrade existing CCTV 
Control Room (including the provision of 
all new monitoring and recording 
equipment and control room furniture) 
 

£75,000 - £90,000 
 

To upgrade all existing CCTV cameras to 
4Mp IP cameras and replace all 
transmission hardware within Poulton, 
Fleetwood, Garstang and Cleveleys 

£185,000 - £217,000 

Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.10 
 
 
 
5.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.12 
 
 
 
 
5.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contingency £31,000 

Capital Total 
 

£291,000 - £338,000 

Annual Revenue Costs £59,000 
 

Project Total First Year £397,000 
 

Project Total over Five Years £633,000 
 

 
It should be noted that all costings provided are estimated. More definite 
costings will only be available once approval of the proposed network 
solution has been given and both a detailed network survey completed 
and a suitable CCTV contractor procured. It should also be noted that in 
addition to the annual revenue costs associated with the silver solution, 
the annual cost of broadband provision to the council as a whole is likely 
to increase from around £15,000 to £28,000 owing to the need to 
increase the fibre broadband width at each of the council’s main fibre 
network points (i.e.: Café Cove, Cleveleys; Civic Centre, Poulton and; 
Marine Hall and Copse Road, Fleetwood). These costs are considered 
separate to the proposed project costs, as whilst necessary to enable the 
upgrade of the CCTV network, they also support the wider council 
functions and would be incurred at some point in the future regardless of 
any move to digital IP technology. 
 
Projected costings have been provided to illustrate the costs of the 
upgrade over time. An equipment lifetime of up to 10 years has been 
assumed for this purpose.  
 
The capital scheme will be added to the council’s Capital Programme for 
2023/24 and 2024/25. £216,000 has been allocated from the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund (£191,000 in 2023/24 and £25,000 in 2024/25). A further 
£25,000 has been secured from the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Lancashire. The remaining balance, expected to be in the region of 
£97,000 will be funded from capital receipts, subject to any other funding 
being obtained. 
 
Revenue costs following the upgrade of the system are predicted to be in 
the region of £59,000 per annum, with network costs amounting to 
approximately £11,000, network maintenance amounting to £13,000 and 
equipment maintenance amounting to approximately £35,000.   
 
The ongoing revenue costs are significantly higher than those currently 
budgeted for. The 2023/24 revenue budget includes £16,390 for CCTV 
related running costs. This will offset the estimated ongoing revenue cost 
of £59,000. A contribution from Fylde Borough Council, if an extension to 
the monitoring arrangement is agreed, is still to be negotiated but will 
leave an unfunded gap each year of between £26,110 and £42,610. This 
will need to be met from general balances and will put additional pressure 

Page 12



 
 
 
5.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.15 
 
 
 
 
5.16 
 
 
 
 
5.17 

on the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan not currently included in the 
budget. 
 
It is proposed that the council will seek a single contractor to both supply, 
install and maintain the upgraded CCTV system in order to remove any 
liability conflicts within the delivery of the project and the initial operating 
period. A tender document is currently being compiled for this purpose 
with the intention that the council will work with Fylde Borough Council to 
secure a suitable contractor to deliver the required upgrade for both 
council’s simultaneously. It is intended that by taking a joint approach to 
the procurement and delivery of the project, the costs and disruption to 
service delivery associated with the project delivery will be minimised as 
much as possible. Should a joint approach not be possible, the council 
will continue to procure the approved upgrades in relation to town centre 
CCTV for Wyre.  
 
The council has employed a CCTV consultant to assist in the 
procurement of a suitable contractor to deliver the project and all works 
proposed have been agreed with the ICT Services Manager and the 
Estates team. 
 
The CCTV team already processes personal data and has relevant 
Privacy Impact Statements in place. Amendments will be made to that 
documentation where deemed necessary on completion of the upgrade 
works. 
 
It should be noted that the recommendations provided in this report relate 
to the council’s town centre CCTV network and do not include the 
upgrade of the CCTV technology serving the council’s assets, which will 
be covered by a future report. 

 

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 

The estimated cost of upgrading the system: 
Capital Estimate - £338,000 
Revenue Estimate Year 1 and ongoing - £59,000. 
 
The Capital scheme will be added to the 2023/24 and 
2024/25 Capital Programme to be funded from a 
combination of UKSPF £216,000 (£191,000 in 2023/24 
and £25,000 in 2024/25), a contribution from the Police 
and Crime Commissioner of £25,000 and the balance to 
be met from capital receipts. A contingency of 10% has 
been included against the capital costs in case of 
inflationary increases and to allow for changes in the 
specification. 
 
The ongoing revenue costs will be met from existing 
budgets (£16,390 on 3361(various)) and a contribution 
from Fylde Borough Council if the current monitoring 

Page 13



arrangement is extended. This extension and its 
associated contribution are still to be negotiated. There is 
still expected to be a shortfall and this will need to be met 
from general balances in the absence of any other 
savings. 

Legal 

 
A contract will be awarded to the successful supplier(s) for 
the provision, installation and maintenance of the system  
in accordance with the council’s financial procedure rules 
and the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 
 

 
Other risks/implications: checklist 

 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist 
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There 
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues 
marked with a x. 
 
risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 
community safety   asset management  

equality and diversity x  climate change x 

Sustainability x  ICT  

health and safety x  data protection  
 

Processing Personal Data 
 
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the 
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also 
required. If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and 
processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new 
working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and 
signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with 
the Data Protection Act 2018.  
 

report author telephone no. email date 
Corinne Mason, 
Environmental 
Protection and 

Community Safety 
Manager 

07971520394 Corinne.mason@wyre.go
v.uk 12.05.2023 

 
 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

Page 14

mailto:Corinne.mason@wyre.gov.uk
mailto:Corinne.mason@wyre.gov.uk


None   
 
 
List of appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – CCTV Upgrade Options Appraisal  

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – CCTV Upgrade Options Appraisal  

 

Solution Inclusion of expanded 
CCTV Control Room 

Ability to Expand Network Resilience Costs 

Bronze – Upgrade of 
existing wireless 
transmission to enable like 
for like replacement of 
network using digital IP 
equipment. Reliance on 
existing transmission 
methods and routes. 

 
 
No 

Very limited - Whilst some 
potential exists to add 
additional cameras to 
existing columns (subject 
to bandwidth availability), 
there will be no monitoring 
capacity available for live 
viewing and no potential 
therefore for future income 
generation. 
 

Low – Continues to rely 
solely on wireless 
transmission between 
camera columns. Risk 
of service loss / 
disruption will remain 
high. 

Low - Continues to utilise 
wireless transmission in 
each town and therefore 
both fibre installation and 
rental costs will be low.   
 
Capital - £290,000 
 
Revenue - £54,000  

Silver – Reduced reliance 
on existing transmission 
methods. Replacement of 
a number of wireless links 
with leased fibre 
connections to improve the 
resilience of the system. 

 
 
 
Yes 

Good – Potential to add 
additional cameras / 
equipment to existing 
columns (subject to 
bandwidth availability).  
Ability to live view 
additional cameras via 
expansion of the CCTV 
Control Room. Ability to 
also provide monitoring 
service for others and 
increase income. 

Good – Provides a 
good balance between 
wireless and fibre 
transmission, providing 
a second and 
alternative means of 
transmission at a 
number of key 
locations within the 
network. Vastly 
improves the reliability 
of the network and 
improves digital 
imagery. 
 

Good – Provides a good 
balance between wireless 
and fibre transmission. 
Whilst fibre installation and 
annual rental costs will 
increase, these will be low 
in comparison to the Gold 
and Gold + solutions. 
 
Capital - £338,000 
 
Revenue - £59,000 

Gold – Replacement of all 
existing wireless links 
where feasible with a 
leased fibre connection. 

 
 
Yes 

Good – Potential to add 
additional cameras to 
existing columns (subject 
to bandwidth availability).  

Very High – Almost 
complete reliance on 
fibre transmission and 
therefore a highly 

Very High – Both 
installation and annual 
fibre rental charges will be 
costly. This is the most 

P
age 17



Ability to live view 
additional cameras via 
expansion of the CCTV 
Control Room. Ability to 
also provide monitoring 
service for others and 
increase income. 
 

resilient and reliable 
network. 
 

expensive solution 
available. 
 
Capital - £532,000 
 
Revenue - £110,000 

Gold + - Replacement of 
all existing wireless links 
where feasible and 
provision of a council 
owned fibre network. 

 
 
Yes 

Very Good – Potential to 
add additional cameras to 
existing columns.  
Bandwidth restrictions will 
be minimised. Ability to live 
view additional cameras 
via expansion of the CCTV 
Control Room. Ability to 
also provide monitoring 
service for others and 
increase income. 

High - Almost complete 
reliance on fibre 
transmission and 
therefore a highly 
resilient and reliable 
network. However, risk 
should failures occur 
will be with the council 
to resolve as links 
won’t be leased. 
 

Very High – Installation 
costs will be higher than 
any other solution. Annual 
fibre rental costs will be 
low and comparable to 
those of Bronze Solution. 
However, the transfer of 
risk will be to the council 
and there are likely to be 
insurance implications 
which would offset some of 
this reduction. 
 
Capital - £651,000 
 
Revenue – £72,000 
 

NB: All solutions include the replacement of all existing cameras and transmission equipment on the CCTV network with digital IP technology.  
All solutions also include the following works as referenced in 5.4 of the Cabinet Report: 

• Installation of a relay column in Poulton to replace the failing wireless link due to the loss of line of sight between camera 6 and St 
Chad’s Church. Failure to undertake works at this location will eventually lead to total loss of connection and loss of camera 6. 
 

• Installation of a fibre connection to column 1 in Garstang to reinstate previous fibre connection to the town following relocation of the 
Tourist Information Centre. 
 

P
age 18



• Installation of a replacement column and camera to the existing (currently redundant) column at the junction of Preston Street and Lord 
Street, Fleetwood. Replacement of this column whilst not critical to the continued operation of the Fleetwood network, would ensure 
CCTV coverage at a critical location within the town whilst ensuring advantage is taken of the cost savings to be made by incorporating 
this work into the wider upgrade project. 
 

• Installation of a camera to the existing (newly installed) column within Mount Park, Fleetwood. Works to install a bespoke camera 
column within Mount Gardens were undertaken as part of the Mount Restoration Project. Installation of a camera on the column was 
postponed to enable inclusion in the wider town centre CCTV upgrade so as to avoid any conflict in connectivity with the wider project.   

 

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report of: Meeting Date 
Councillor Roger Berry, 

Neighbourhood Services and 
Community Safety Portfolio 
Holder and Mark Billington, 

Corporate Director 
Environment 

Cabinet 7 June 2023 

 
Variation to the Wyre Hackney Carriage Tariff 

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
 

To consider the recommendation from the Licensing Committee to revise 
the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares.  

2. Outcomes 
 

 2.1 
 
 

To agree to amend the table of fares for Wyre licensed Hackney 
Carriages, in accordance with the recommendation of the Licensing 
Committee (Minute 23 from Licensing Committee on 25 April 2023). 
 

3. Recommendations 
 

 3.1 
 
 

That the revised table of fares be approved and implemented from 7 July 
2023, subject to the proper consideration of any responses to the public 
notice. 
 

 3.2 
 
 

That the Senior Licensing Officer advertise the variation in accordance 
with section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provision) Act 
1976 (Appendix 1). 
 

4. Background 
 

 4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
allows district councils to fix the maximum rates of fares for hackney 
carriage journeys (but not for private hire vehicles which are determined 
by market forces). No time period has been set by the Act for the review 
of such fares but the council would be required to publish a notice setting 
out any variation to the existing table in at least one local newspaper 
circulating within the borough. Additionally, the council would also be 
required to display a notice, containing the specifics of the newspaper 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 

advertisement, at their main offices for a period of 14 days which would 
commence on the first day of publication.  
 
In support of the above please take note that section 10.1 of the current 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy for Wyre Council 
outlines that “The Council is responsible for setting the Hackney Carriage 
Tariff, which is a table of the maximum fares that may be charged for a 
journey”. 
 
The last variation to increase the tariff was implemented on 4 October 
2022. A copy of the current table of fares for Wyre is attached at 
Appendix 2. 
 
The provision of taxis is an integral part of the transport infrastructure and 
is particularly influential in the transportation of individuals late at night 
when other forms of public transport services have ceased. The provision 
of affordable taxis assist in community safety by ensuring people are 
removed from town centres safely.  
 
In addition to this it is important to consider that hackney carriages 
provide a vital form of transport for the disabled who may have difficulties 
accessing other forms of public transport. On this basis it is critically 
important to ensure that fares are maintained at a level which will 
encourage investment in Disability Discrimination Act 1998 and Equality 
Act 2010 compliant and low emission vehicles yet remain affordable to 
disabled people. 
 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 

Representatives of the licensed trade within Wyre lodged proposals to 
vary existing tariffs on 7 February 2023 (Appendix 3).   
 
An accurate comparison of proposed and existing tariffs (including 
percentage increases) can be viewed at Appendix 4. This document was 
created with the use of a tariff calculator and based solely on the data 
contained within the proposals put forward by the trade. 
 
A trade-wide consultation was launched on 15 March 2023 and ran until 
midnight on 31 March 2023. The options circulated to the trade consisted 
of the two proposals they had put forward and an option for no changes 
to be made to the existing table of fares. A copy of the information they 
were provided with can be viewed in full at Appendix 5.  
 
The results of the poll can be reviewed at Appendix 6 and clearly 
highlight that the overwhelming majority voted for option 3 which would in 
effect result in increases of 15% for tariff 1 and 15.48% for tariff 2.  
 
The Licensing Committee considered the proposals on 25 April 2023 and 
agreed to recommend proposal 3 of Appendix 5.   
 

Page 22



 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
5.8 
 

 
 
 
Benchmarking comparisons for Hackney fares are usually expressed as 
a two mile journey on Tariff 1. Wyre’s fare is currently £6.70. By 
comparison:   
 
Ribble Valley is £8.00 (increased 1 October 2022); 
Blackpool is £6.00 (increased January 2023); 
Lancaster £6.60 (increased 12 April 2023); 
Fylde is £6.70 (increased 31 August  2022), and; 
Preston is £6.00 (effective date not specified on their website). 
 
The recommendation will increase Wyre’s fare from £6.70 to £7.50. 
A list of tariff cards can be viewed at Appendix 7 and a comparison of ‘at 
the pump’ fuel prices can be viewed at Appendix 8. Additionally, a copy of 
the Hackney Carriage Fare League Tables can be viewed at Appendix 9. 
 
The council must give at least fourteen days’ notice of its intention to vary 
the Hackney Carriage Tariff.  

 

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 

There are no direct financial implications for the council in 
setting the fares for hackney carriages, except the 
statutory advertising cost in a local newspaper which will 
be met from within existing budgets. 

Legal 
The power to set the maximum fares for hackney carriages 
is contained in section 65 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

 
Other risks/implications: checklist 

 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist 
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There 
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues 
marked with a x. 
 
risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 
community safety   asset management X 

equality and diversity   climate change X 

sustainability X  ICT X 

health and safety X  data protection X 
 

Processing Personal Data 
 

Page 23



In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the 
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also 
required. If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and 
processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new 
working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and 
signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with 
the Data Protection Act 2018.  
 

report author telephone no. email date 

Patrick Cantley 887281 patrick.cantley@wyre.go
v.uk 2 May 2023 

 
 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 
Licensing Committee 
Report – Agenda item 
4 

25 April 2023 
Agenda for Licensing Committee on 
Tuesday, 25th April, 2023, 6.00 pm 
(moderngov.co.uk) 

Minutes from 
Licensing Committee  25 April 2023  Minutes Template (moderngov.co.uk) 

 
 
List of appendices 
Appendix 1 – Gazette Tariff Advert for 2023  
Appendix 2 – Current Table of fares for Wyre   
Appendix 3 – Proposals Bundle  
Appendix 4 – Comparison of existing tariff against proposed changes  
Appendix 5 – Wyre Council Taxi Tariff Consultation 
Appendix 6 – Results of the consultation 
Appendix 7 – Other tariff cards  
Appendix 8 – At pump prices over time  
Appendix 9 – Hackney Carriage Fares League Table 

Page 24

mailto:patrick.cantley@wyre.gov.uk
mailto:patrick.cantley@wyre.gov.uk
https://wyre.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=148&MId=1713&Ver=4
https://wyre.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=148&MId=1713&Ver=4
https://wyre.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=148&MId=1713&Ver=4
https://wyre.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g1713/Printed%20minutes%2025th-Apr-2023%2018.00%20Licensing%20Committee.pdf?T=1


APPENDIX 1 
 

WYRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
VARIATION IN HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Wyre Borough Council, in pursuance of the powers 
contained in Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, intends to 
vary the table of maximum fares in respect of hackney carriages licensed by the Council as follows: 
 
NB: Tariff 2 applies to hiring’s on Monday to Thursday inclusive between 21:00hrs and 
00:00hrs, 19.00hrs Friday until 0.00hrs Saturday morning, 06.00hrs Saturday morning until 0.00hrs 
Sunday morning, 06.00hrs Sunday morning until 0.00hrs Monday morning. 06.00 - 07.00hrs Monday 
to Friday mornings. All day on Statutory Holidays and Bank Holidays.  
Tariff 3 applies 00.00hrs - 06.00hrs Monday to Sunday. (Tariff 2 plus 60 pence) 
Tariff 4 (Christmas & New Year) applies between 18.00hrs of 24th December to 07.00hrs on 
27th December and between 18.00hrs on 31st December to 07.00hrs on 2nd January. (Tariff 2 + 
£3.00) 
Tariff 1 applies at all other times. 

a) Tariff 1: £3.l0 for the first 140 meters or uncompleted part thereof. 20p for each subsequent 
140 meters or uncompleted part thereof.  

b) Tariff 2: Tariff 2: £3.30 for the first 110 meters or uncompleted part thereof. 20p for each 
subsequent 110 meters or uncompleted part thereof.  

c) Waiting Time: For each period of seconds or uncompleted part thereof 20 pence per 35 
seconds for Tariff 1 and 20 pence per 30 seconds for Tariff 2.  

d) Extra Charges:   
For each article of luggage conveyed outside the passenger compartment of the carriage or for 
each perambulator carried:  40 pence for Tariff 1 and 40 pence for Tariff 2.   
For each passenger in excess of one (two children between the ages of 3 years and 12 years to 
be counted as one with younger children not to be reckoned):  40 pence for Tariff 1 and 40 
pence for Tariff 2.   
For each dog carried (No charge for assistance dogs): 40 pence for Tariff 1 and 40 pence for 
tariff 2.  

e) Fuel Surcharge:  
If the cost of diesel reaches £l.80 per litre or higher, based on prices at Morrisons Fuel 

Station, 
Amounderness Way, Cleveleys, a 40pence surcharge is allowed per journey. A further 40 
pence surcharge is allowed for every subsequent 20 pence increase in the price of fuel. This 
surcharge is allowed if the vehicle is powered by a fuel alternative to diesel at that time. 

 
A copy of this notice is available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the Civic Centre, Breck 
Road, Poulton le Fylde and on the Council’s website at www.wyre.gov.uk/taxis. Any objection to 
these proposals must be made in writing to by no later than noon on 30th June 2023.  If no objections 
are received, the proposed variation will be effective from Friday 7th July 2023. 

 
Mark Billington, Corporate Director Environment, 

Civic Centre, Breck Road, Poulton le Fylde.  FY6 7PU 
Dated: 2nd May 2023 

Page 25

http://www.wyre.gov.uk/taxis


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Section 65 
 

Scale of maximum charges fixed by the Wyre Borough Council with respect to Hackney Carriages in the 

Borough to operate from: 4 October 2022. 
 
 

NOTE: Tariff 2 applies to hiring’s on Monday to Thursday inclusive between 21:00hrs and 

00:00hrs, 19.00hrs Friday until 00.00hrs Saturday morning, 06.00hrs Saturday morning until 

00.00hrs Sunday morning, 06.00hrs Sunday morning until 00.00hrs Monday morning. 06.00 - 

07.00hrs Monday to Friday mornings. All day on Statutory Holidays and Bank Holidays.  

Tariff 3 applies 00.00hrs - 06.00hrs Monday to Sunday. (Tariff 2 plus 60 pence) 

Tariff 4 (Christmas & New Year) applies between 18.00hrs of 24 December to 07.00hrs on 

27 December and between 18.00hrs on 31 December to 07.00hrs on 2 January. (Tariff 2 + £3.00) 

Tariff 1 applies at all other times. 

(a) Mileage 

 

Tariff 1: £3.10 for the first 340 metres or uncompleted part thereof. 20p for each subsequent 165 metres or 

uncompleted part thereof.  

Tariff 2: £3.30 for the first 260 metres or uncompleted part thereof. 20p for each subsequent 130 metres or 

uncompleted part thereof. 

 

(b) Waiting Time     Tariff 1  Tariff 2 

For each period of seconds or uncompleted part thereof:  20p per 35 seconds 30 Seconds 

(c) Extra Charges 

For each article of luggage conveyed outside the passenger  £0.30  £0.30 

compartment of the carriage or for each perambulator carried.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       Tariff  1  Tariff  2 

 

For each passenger in excess of one (two children between the  £0.30  £0.30 

ages of 3 years and12 years to be counted as one). 

Younger children not to be reckoned.     

For each dog carried. No charge for assistance dogs  £0.30  £0.30  

An extra charge between 00:00hrs to 06:00hrs. (Tariff 3)  -------------  £0 60 

Surcharge per hiring commenced between 18:00hrs 24  -------------  £3.00 

December to 07:00hrs on 27 December and between 18:00hrs 

On 31 December to 07:00hrs on 2 January. (Tariff 4)     

Cleaning charge arising from the withdrawal of a vehicle owing  to £50.00 

 £50.00 

passenger abuse.      

(d) Fuel Surcharge 

If the cost of diesel is £1.80 per litre or higher, based on prices at Morrison’s Fuel Station, Amounderness 

Way, Cleveleys, a 30p surcharge is allowed per journey. A further 30p surcharge is allowed per 20 pence 

increase in the price of fuel. This surcharge is also allowed if the vehicle is powered by a fuel alternative to 

diesel at that time. 
 
 
 
 

 

No smoking or drinking of 

alcohol allowed in this vehicle. 

Licensing Department,  

Wyre Borough Council, Civic Centre,  

Poulton-Le-Fylde, Lancashire, FY6 7PU 
 

HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE FARES 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



 

Appendix 4 – Comparison of existing tariffs against 

proposed changes 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Wyre Council Taxi Tariff Consultation 2023  

Dear All,  

The Licensing Authority at Wyre Council have received a number of requests to revise Hackney 

Carriage Fares. Listed below are three proposals. The first option represents no change to the 

current rate of fares and the two proposals that were both submitted to the Council in February 

2023.   

Please take your time to refer to the proposals and consider all information carefully. Once you 

have done a survey is available at https://survey.alchemer.eu/s3/90545382/Taxi-Tariff-Survey-2023. 

The survey contains three options with option one being relevant to proposal one of this 

document, option two being relevant to proposal two of this document and option three being 

relevant to proposal three of this document.  

PLEASE NOTE THIS SURVEY IS ONLYACCESSIBLE WITH THE LINK LISTED 

ABOVE. PLEASE ALSO TAKE NOTE THAT THE SAME IP ADDRESS CANNOT 

COMPLETE THE SURVEY MORE THAN ONCE. 

The survey is now live and will close on the 31st March 2023 so please ensure you submit your 

response in time to make sure your opinion counts.    

Thank you for your time and input in relation to this matter.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39

https://survey.alchemer.eu/s3/90545382/Taxi-Tariff-Survey-2023


Proposal 1 is that there would be no change to the existing 

rate 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



Proposal 2 is as follows - 

Hackney Carriage Fares - Wyre Borough 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Section 65 

Scale of maximum charges fixed by Wyre Borough Council with respect to Hackney Carriages 

in the Borough to operate from:  

NOTE: Tariff 2 applies to hiring’s on Monday to Thursday inclusive between 21:00hrs and 

00:00hrs, 19.00hrs Friday until 0.00hrs Saturday morning, 06.00hrs Saturday morning 

until 0.00hrs Sunday morning, 06.00hrs Sunday morning until 0.00hrs Monday morning. 

06.00 - 07.00hrs Monday to Friday mornings. All day on Statutory Holidays and Bank 

Holidays.  
 

Tariff 3 applies 00.00hrs - 06.00hrs Monday to Sunday. (Tariff 2 plus 60 pence) 

 

Tariff 4 (Xmas & New Year) applies between 18.00hrs of 24s December to 07.00hrs on 

27th December and between 18.00hrs on 31st December to 07.00hrs on 2nd January. 

(Tariff 2 + £3.00) 

 

Tariff 1 applies at all other times. 

 (a) Mileage 

Tariff 1: £3.10 for the first 145 metres or uncompleted part thereof. 

20p for each subsequent 145 metres or uncompleted part thereof. 

Tariff 2: £3.30 for the first 115 metres or uncompleted part thereof 

20p for each subsequent 115 metres or uncompleted part thereof. 

(b) Waiting Time                        Tariff 1 / Tariff 2 

For each period of seconds or uncompleted part thereof 20p per - 35 seconds 30 seconds  

(c) Extra Charges 

For each article of luggage conveyed outside the passenger  £0.40        £0.40 

compartment of the carriage or for each perambulator carried. 

 

For each passenger in excess of one (two children between the £0.40      £0.40 

ages of 3 years and 12 years to be counted as one). 

Younger children not to be reckoned.  

 

For each dog carried. (No charge for assistance dogs)  £0.40      £0.40 

Page 41



Cleaning charge arising from the withdrawal of the vehicle  £50.00      £50.00 
due to passenger 

(d) Fuel Surcharge 

If the cost of diesel is £1.80 per litre or higher, based on prices at Morrison’s Fuel Station, 

Amounderness Way, Cleveleys, a 40p surcharge is allowed per journey. A further 40p surcharge 

is allowed per 20 pence increase in the price of fuel. This surcharge is also allowed if the vehicle 

is powered by a fuel alternative to diesel at that time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposal 3 is as follows 

Page 42



Hackney Carriage Fares - Wyre Borough 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Section 65 

Scale of maximum charges fixed by Wyre Borough Council with respect to Hackney Carriages 

in the Borough to operate from:  

NOTE: Tariff 2 applies to hiring’s on Monday to Thursday inclusive between 21:00hrs and 

00:00hrs, 19.00hrs Friday until 0.00hrs Saturday morning, 06.00hrs Saturday morning 

until 0.00hrs Sunday morning, 06.00hrs Sunday morning until 0.00hrs Monday morning. 

06.00 - 07.00hrs Monday to Friday mornings. All day on Statutory Holidays and Bank 

Holidays.  
 

Tariff 3 applies 00.00hrs - 06.00hrs Monday to Sunday. (Tariff 2 plus 60 pence) 

 

Tariff 4 (Xmas & New Year) applies between 18.00hrs of 24s December to 07.00hrs on 

27th December and between 18.00hrs on 31st December to 07.00hrs on 2nd January. 

(Tariff 2 + f3.00) 

 

Tariff 1 applies at all other times. 

(a) Mileage 

Tariff I: £3.10 for the first 140 meters or uncompleted part thereof. 

20p for each subsequent 140 meters or uncompleted part thereof. 

Tariff 2: £3.30 for the first 110 meters or uncompleted part thereof 

20p for each subsequent 110 meters or uncompleted part thereof. 

(b) Waiting Time                        Tariff 1 / Tariff 2 

For each period of seconds or uncompleted part thereof 20p per - 35 seconds 30 seconds 

(c) Extra Charges 

For each article of luggage conveyed outside the passenger   £0.40        £0.40 

compartment of the carriage or for each perambulator carried. 

 

For each passenger in excess of one (two children between the £0.40      £0.40 

ages of 3 years and 12 years to be counted as one). 

Younger children not to be reckoned.  

 

For each dog carried. (No charge for assistance dogs)  £0.40      £0.40 

Cleaning charge arising from the withdrawal of the vehicle  £50.00      £50.00 

due to passenger 

Page 43



(d) Fuel Surcharge 

If the cost of diesel is £1.80 per litre or higher, based on prices at Morrison’s Fuel Station, 

Amounderness Way, Cleveleys, a 40p surcharge is allowed per journey. A further 40p surcharge 

is allowed per 20 pence increase in the price of fuel. This surcharge is also allowed if the vehicle 

is powered by a fuel alternative to diesel at that time. 

 

Page 44



Appendix 6 – Results of the consultation process 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

Page 46



 

 Appendix 7 – Other tariff cards 

 

Page 47



Taxi fares, ranks and accessibility  
(Preston City Council)  
Taxi fares  
Hackney carriage fares (or tariff) are set by us and are a maximum fare that can be 
charged by hackney carriage drivers.  
 
Please note that we are not able to set fares for private hire vehicles.  

 
Hackney carriage fares  
 
The following tariffs apply to all journeys within the Local Authority area and to journeys 
that end outside the Local Authority area, unless agreed otherwise:  
 
Tariff 1 - for hiring commenced between 7am and 11pm Monday - Saturday:  
  First 735 yards - £2.20  

  Each succeeding 175 yards - £0.20  

  After 3 miles for each succeeding 145 yards - £0.20  
 
Tariff 2 - for hiring commenced between 11pm and 7am Monday - Saturday, all day 
Sunday, statutory public and bank holidays (excluding Christmas and New Year 
period):  
  For the first 735 yards - £2.80  

  Each succeeding 145 yards - £0.20  
 
Tariff 3 - for hiring commenced between 8pm on Christmas Eve and 7am on 27 
December and between 6pm on New Year's Eve and 7am on 2 January:  
  For the first 735 yards - £4.40  

  Each succeeding 194 yards - £0.40  
 
Please note: the waiting time on each tariff for each period of one minute (or part) is 
£0.20.  

Additional charges  
  For each article of luggage conveyed outside the passenger compartment of the 
carriage - £0.20  

  For each person in excess of one for each whole journey - £0.20  
 

Soiling charge  
To cover cleaning and loss of income, where the interior of the vehicle is soiled (at the 
drivers discretion), not exceeding £35.  

Up-front payments 

 
  Drivers may ask you to pay an estimated fare/deposit up-front  

  If you do not agree you may be refused travel  

Journeys ending outside the city  
 
When a journey ends outside the city boundaries a fare greater than what would have 
been shown on the meter may be charged, but only if an agreement has been made 

Page 48



with the hirer in advance. In the absence of such an agreement, only the metered fare 
can be charged.  
 

A table of authorised maximum fares should be displayed in each vehicle, so that it is 

easily visible to all hirers. 

Hackney carriage fares 
(Blackpool Council)  
Last Modified January 06, 2023  

These are the maximum fares chargeable by licensed Blackpool hackney 
carriage vehicles (taxis) for journeys within the borough.  
Please note some operators may offer fares lower than the maximum.  

Tariff 1 - Monday to Friday 6.00am to 09.00pm  
1 person £2.60 start for first 372 yards and every subsequent 186 yards 20p  

Tariff 2 Monday to Friday 09.00pm to 12.00am, 
Saturdays, Sundays and bank holidays  
£2.60 start for first 280 yards and every subsequent 140 yards 20p  

Tariff 3 Daily from 12.00am to 6.00am  
£3.20 start for first 280 yards and every subsequent 140 yards 20p  

Tariff 4 Christmas and new year  
£5.20 Start for first 280 yards and every subsequent 140 yards 20p  
Christmas and new year  
24 December: Tariff 2 6.00am until 6.00pm; Tariff 3 6.00pm until 10.00pm; 
Tariff 4 10.00pm until 6.00am 25 December  
25 December: Tariff 4 6.00am until 6.00am 26 December  
26 December: Tariff 3 6.00am until 10.00pm; Tariff 4 10.00pm until 6.00am 
27 December  
31 December: Tariff 2 6.00am until 6.00pm; Tariff 3 6.00pm to 10.00pm; 
Tariff 4 10.00pm until 6.00am on 1 Jan  
1 Jan: Tariff 3 6.00am until 10.00pm; Tariff 4 10.00pm until 6.00am 2 Jan  
Additional passengers  
In excess of one - 30p for each additional adult passenger.  
 
Children  
For every two passengers 3 to 12 years - 30p.  
Luggage, prams and dogs  

Page 49



Each item 30p.  
Waiting time  
T1 - 20p for each period of 35 seconds. The meter adds this automatically.  
T2, T3 & T4 - 20p for each period of 30 seconds. The meter adds this 
automatically.  
Cleaning charges  
If passengers soil the vehicle the driver may add £40 to the fare.  
Note 1  
Drivers may ask you to pay an estimated fare/deposit in advance of the 
journey. If you do not agree you may be refused travel.  
Note 2  
The meter will not commence until all disabled/wheelchair bound 

passengers are loaded safely and securely in the vehicle. No charge for 

assistance dogs or wheelchairs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

 

 

Page 51



 

Page 52



TAXI/HACKNEY TABLE OF FARES 

Appendix 8 – Prices of petrol and diesel since 2004 
 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9 – Hackney Carriage Fares League Tables 

for June 2022 

 

This is a North West based comparison including some Boroughs or Districts from 

Cumbria and Lancashire. In order of highest position based on 2 mile journey (April  

2023) – Ribble Valley 45, Blackburn with Darwen 170, Fylde in 204, Wyre 247, 

South Ribble 252, Blackpool 272 and Lancaster City Council 282. SLDC, Eden and 

Barrow discounted this time following merge in to combined authority of 

Westmorland and Furness Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

 

 

Page 56



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

Page 58

Highlight



 

Page 59



 

Page 60



 

Page 61



 

Page 62

Highlight



 

Page 63

Highlight



 

Page 64

Highlight



 

Page 65

Highlight

Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66

Highlight



 

Page 67



 

Page 68


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of minutes
	5 Upgrade to CCTV network
	20230515 Appendix 1 - CCTV Options Appraisal Report

	6 Variation to the Wyre Hackney Carriage Tariff
	Appendix 1 - Gazette Tariff Advert For 2023
	VARIATION IN HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES

	Appendix 2 - Current table of fares for Wyre
	Appendix 3 - Proposals bundle
	Appendix 4 - Comparison of existing tariff against proposed changes
	Appendix 5 - Wyre Council Taxi Tariff Consultation 2023
	Appendix 6 - Results of 2023 consultation process
	Appendix 7 - Updated tariff cards for other authorities
	Appendix 8 - Prices of petrol and diesel since 2004
	Appendix 9 - Hackney Carriage fare league table Apri; 20233




